

MINUTES

Meeting: AMESBURY AREA BOARD
Place: Figheledean Village Hall, Pollen Lane, Figheledean SP4 8JR
Date: 18 July 2013
Start Time: 6.08 pm
Finish Time: 8.03 pm

Please direct any enquiries on these minutes to:

Kirsty Butcher Democratic Services Officer, Tel: 01225 713948 or (e-mail) kirsty.butcher@wiltshire.gov.uk

Papers available on the Council's website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

In Attendance:

Wiltshire Councillors

Cllr John Noeken, Cllr John Smale (Chairman), Cllr Ian West, Cllr Fred Westmoreland and Cllr Graham Wright

Wiltshire Council Officers

Karen Linaker – Community Area Manager
Mark Smith – Service Director
Kirsty Butcher – Senior Democratic Services Officer
John Goodall, Associate Director of Public Health
Jenni Bertram – Youth Development Co-Ordinator
Paul Shore – Multi Media Officer

Town and Parish Councils

Amesbury Town Council – Ian Mitchell and Jim Pitt
Durrington Town Council – David Goodman
Figheledean Parish Council – John Menzies and Marian Menzies
Idmiston Parish Council – Andrew Tidd and Janet Tidd
Shrewton Parish Council – Carol Slater
Steeple Langford Parish Council – Ken Kinnear
Tilshead Parish Council – Victoria Burbidge
Winterbourne Parish Council – R Baker and D J Baker

Partners

Police – Inspector C Lange

Total in attendance: 45

<u>Agenda Item No.</u>	<u>Summary of Issues Discussed and Decision</u>
1	<p><u>Welcome and Introductions</u></p> <p>The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting of the Amesbury Area Board and thanked Figheldean Village Hall for hosting the meeting.</p> <p>At the Chairman's invitation, the Councillors and officers in attendance at the meeting introduced themselves.</p>
2	<p><u>Apologies for Absence</u></p> <p>Apologies for absence had been received from:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Cllr Mike Hewitt • Mike Franklin - WFRS
3	<p><u>Funding for youth projects</u></p> <p>Cllr Smale invited expressions of interest from youth groups and clubs for the funding of youth projects.</p> <p>The following expressions were received</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Langfords Youth Group – new portacabin <p>Langfords Youth Group is a voluntary funded group who were looking for funding to assist in their fundraising for portacabins. These are to be placed on the sports field at Steeple Langford, giving young people of between the ages of 8-16 years old a dedicated place to go.</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Bourne Valley new explorer scouts group <p>With 15 young people reaching the age of 14 in the next two years the scout group were looking to set up an explorer scout group to cater for children aged 14-18, and asked for £500 towards the hall costs for the first 3-4 weeks.</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • Air Training Crops <p>The Air Training Crops covered a large area including Amesbury, Durrington, Tidworth, Bulford and Upavon. Transport was their biggest issue and they asked for £500 towards the purchase of a minibus.</p>

- Porton Football Club

Porton Football Club is a thriving club that runs a range of teams between the ages of 8 through to under 14's. Currently they have 5 -6 teams moving through the leagues. They operate a pay as you play system and currently the FA1 /2 coaching badges are funded by parents, demonstrating their commitment. They are looking to structure the club and they asked for funding to assist them in their goals of providing support for the training of managers, creating a stronger team identity through kit and winter wear, investing in more sustainable equipment and providing cafe equipment to give them the chance to produce their own revenue scheme.

- Girl Guides Association

The guides are looking for funding to enable them to invest in camping equipment. This equipment would be shared by all guide groups in the south of Wiltshire.

- Durrington Otters

The Durrington Otters highlighted the success of their sessions at Sportsfest, and asked for funding to allow them to offer similar sessions throughout the school holidays.

A further expression was received from the Amesbury School Cluster asking for funding towards the costs of providing a counselling service to the 7 schools in the Amesbury cluster in 2013/14. A grant application had been received for this and the request would be considered under the Community Area Grants item later in the meeting.

During the table exercise that followed the following points were noted:

- There was a need for more leaders to facilitate better communication with communities, especially dedicated youth leaders
- There was a lack of youth clubs in the Bourne Valley area
- Communication could be improved between schools and local governing groups over upcoming events
- Youth groups could communicate better with parent over their longer term plans
- There needed to be better access to funding and a clearer understanding of what funding is available
- Help should be offered in writing bids
- The use of tourism to promote the local economy should be explored
- Networking and awareness needed to improve, e.g. making people aware of the resources available like minibuses etc.

	<p>Items suggested for discussion at future Area Board meetings were:</p> <ul style="list-style-type: none"> • The super-garrison and to worry over its impact • Working with adjoining Area Boards, e.g. Avon Valley • Speedwatch • Good Neighbours <p>The Chairman noted how successful the session had been and explained that all bids would be assessed over the coming weeks and confirmation would be given as soon as possible as to their success.</p> <p>Decision</p> <p>The Board agreed to delegate the decisions on funding to the Community Area Manager in consultation with the Chair and Cllr John Noeken and for feedback to be brought to the next Board meeting.</p>
4	<p><u>Minutes</u></p> <p>Decision</p> <p>The minutes of the meeting held on 30 May 2013 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.</p>
5	<p><u>Declarations of Interest</u></p> <p>There were no declarations of interest.</p>
6	<p><u>Chairman's Announcements</u></p> <p>The Chairman made the following announcements:</p> <p>a) Wiltshire Fire and Rescue draft Public Safety Plan</p> <p>A consultation was currently taking place regarding the new draft Public Safety Plan 2013-16. The Chairman invited parishes and members of the public to comment. The consultation ends on 1 August 2013.</p> <p>b) Update on Bulford to Amesbury Cycle Way</p> <p>The feasibility study has taken place and is in the process of being completed as a consequence of consultation with officers. Public consultation will be arranged for the end of September and is likely to include two drop in sessions, one in Bulford and one in Amesbury. Further details on the dates and venues will be announced at the beginning of September.</p>

	<p>c) Sportfest</p> <p>Congratulations were give to Cllr Graham Wright on the success of the Sportsfest event. Cllr Wright explained that its success was partly down to it attracting people from all around the community. He highlighted the sessions from Bulford Archers as having a queue throughout the afternoon, noting that they had been a recipient of a grant from the Board, and also congratulated the Bourne Valley Scout Group. Thanks was given to Avon Valley College and Durrington Town Council for their support and he looked forward to doing it all again next year!</p>
7	<p><u>Your Local Issues</u></p> <p>Karen Linaker, Amesbury Community Area Manager reminded the meeting of the local issues system.</p> <p>David Goodman, a member of Durrington Town Council praised the Sportsfest event, commended Durrington Cemetery on its appearance and noted that the Durrington to Amesbury footpath was almost nearing completion. He expressed his dismay at the new highways reporting system, explaining that he had used the new system and not yet received an acknowledgment. He was disappointed that there had been no improvement with the new highways lead and asked for feedback on the matter.</p> <p>ACTION: Karen Linaker</p> <p>He went on to highlight the drain in the Bulford road area, noting that despite Cllr Graham Wright drawing attention to the issue three times nothing further had happened and it was a flood risk. He also drew the Board's attention to the garages in Chalfield Road, explaining that they were poorly maintained and attracted anti-social behaviour. He asked for support from the Board in asking Wiltshire Council to deal with the matter.</p> <p>ACTION: Karen Linaker</p> <p>John Menzies, from Figheldean Parish Council highlighted the issue of Mill Pond at Figheldean with it being advertised as a wild swim area. He said that weekends had become intolerable with up to 70 cars being parked at one time. Inspector Lange explained that the best way was to present a united front and urged residents to call 101 and make notes of car registration plates for the police to follow up. It was agreed that a meeting needed to be arranged as soon as possible between the MOD, police, representatives from the village and the Chair of Amesbury Area Board.</p> <p>ACTION: Karen Linaker</p> <p>Jenni Bertram, the Youth Development Co-Ordinator for the Amesbury Area introduced herself and explained that she was part of the integrated youth</p>

	<p>service, providing provision for 14 – 19 year olds in the Amesbury Board area. She highlighted the upcoming set up of a Youth Action Group for the area, starting from September 2013 and which would be looking for a chair under the age of 25. She was hoping to recruit from youth groups and looked forward to working together as a community.</p>
8	<p><u>Updates from Partners and Town/Parish Councils</u></p> <p>The Chairman referred to the updates set out in the agenda and invited further updates from Town/Parish Councils and other Partners, including outside bodies. It was noted that the preferred option was for written updates, to minimise time spent during the meeting.</p> <p>a) NHS Wiltshire</p> <p>The written update seen at pages 15 - 16 of the agenda was noted.</p> <p>b) Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service</p> <p>The written update seen at pages 17 – 18 of the agenda was noted.</p> <p>c) Wiltshire Police</p> <p>Inspector Lange introduced the written report circulated at the meeting and attached to these minutes. He explained there was an ongoing problem with shed burglaries and encouraged all to mark their property with their postcode.</p> <p>Successes included the arrest of three burglars and the recovery of stolen property. Operation ‘Engage’, which is aimed at reducing rural crime, had resulted in the issuing of £790 worth of on-the-spot fines to motorists using red diesel.</p> <p>d) Good neighbours</p> <p>Janet Tidd explained that she now covered the whole of the Amesbury Area and would be visiting all parishes to explain what Good Neighbours do to help in their communities.</p>
9	<p><u>Community Plan Working Group Updates</u></p> <p>Community facilities, health and well-being</p> <p>The next meeting of the community facilities, health and well-being panel would be on 23 September 2013 at 6.30 pm where they would be meeting with the lead for the Health Community network and day opportunities service.</p>

	<p>Crime and community safety</p> <p>Cllr Noeken noted the issues identified by the group as being abuse, especially alcohol and enhancing neighbourhood watch. The lower crime figures seen in the Amesbury urban area were a result of better co-operation between the public, councils and the police. Police were also working hard on reducing anti-social behaviour (ASB) and played a DVD showing the ASB issues created on a Saturday night by the lack of available taxis. A meeting would be set up in the next couple of weeks to take forward the issue of the night time economy in Amesbury and the next panel meeting would also focus on this.</p> <p>Sport, leisure and culture</p> <p>Cllr Wright drew attention to the success of Sportsfest as described in the Chairman’s announcements and noted that the focus of the next meeting would be on culture and leisure. He invited anyone interested to contact him.</p> <p>Environment</p> <p>The focus for the environment panel was noise pollution, waste / recycling and dog fouling. It was noted that they were still trying to gather enough numbers to hold in-house dog warden training.</p> <p>Housing, economic development, planning and tourism</p> <p>Cllr Westmoreland explained that the panel would be looking at a way to work with the area co-ordinator who administers the Balfour Beatty contract, including a way in which work could be monitored and reported when it was not being done.</p>
10	<p><u>Update from the Community Area Transport Group (CATG)</u></p> <p>The Area Board considered an update on schemes currently being considered by the Community Area Transport Group (CATG).</p> <p>The Board noted that 20 out of 22 parishes had not held speedwatch group meetings for months. The Police and Crime Commissioner was due to relaunch the scheme in September, and an invitation was extended to all town and parish councils to attend a speedwatch demonstration on Thursday 25 July 2013 from 6.30pm at St. Margarets Hall.</p> <p>Previous results showed that SIDS were most effective and highlighted the need to target people.s</p> <p>Concern was raised over the impact of the A303 throughout the communities in the Amesbury Board area that it travelled through, including queues and roadblocks, and it was agreed that this should be advanced as a priority.</p>

	<p>Decision:</p> <p>To support the Transport Groups recommendations to fund the schemes listed in the table below:</p> <table border="1" data-bbox="379 427 1410 613"> <tr> <td data-bbox="379 427 1270 573"><u>Tanners Lane to Bridge Garage, Shrewton:</u> new carriageway edge line and textured surface to delineate a pedestrian area</td> <td data-bbox="1270 427 1410 573">£2,000</td> </tr> <tr> <td data-bbox="379 573 1270 613"><u>Winterbourne Earls (A338):</u> second assisted crossing</td> <td data-bbox="1270 573 1410 613">£3,500</td> </tr> </table>	<u>Tanners Lane to Bridge Garage, Shrewton:</u> new carriageway edge line and textured surface to delineate a pedestrian area	£2,000	<u>Winterbourne Earls (A338):</u> second assisted crossing	£3,500
<u>Tanners Lane to Bridge Garage, Shrewton:</u> new carriageway edge line and textured surface to delineate a pedestrian area	£2,000				
<u>Winterbourne Earls (A338):</u> second assisted crossing	£3,500				
11	<p><u>Amesbury Shadow Community Operations Board</u></p> <p>Cllr Westmoreland explained that the Amesbury Shadow Community Operations Board provided an opportunity to create either a single site or a series of sites which focussed on making it easier for people to get the services they want.</p> <p>The Board had looked at what's available and would be sending out a questionnaire to the community asking for their feedback on topic such as upgrading of buildings and services/buildings that are in the wrong place.</p>				
12	<p><u>What is Public Health?</u></p> <p>John Goodall, Associate Director of Public Health explained that the Health and Social Care Act 2011 had introduced a lot of change, including incorporating public health into Wiltshire Council. He noted that the local authority statutory responsibilities had changed and slightly increased. A short video was shown which detailed the changes and attention was drawn to the local health profile and the joint strategic needs assessment.</p>				
13	<p><u>Community Area Grants</u></p> <p>At the Chairman's invitation, Councillor John Noeken, Lead member for Grants, introduced this item. A reminder was given on the dates for receiving applications for the forthcoming meetings of the Board, as detailed below:</p> <p>8 August for the September Board meeting 10 October for the November Board meeting 19 December for the January 2014 Board meeting 13 February for the March 2014 meeting</p> <p>The Area Board considered applications for Community Area grant funding.</p> <p>Decision</p> <p>Steeple Langford Allotment Trustees was awarded £1449 towards a new Community Orchard project.</p>				

	<p><i>Reason - The application met the Community Area Grants Criteria 2013/14 and would benefit all age groups within the community, encouraging greater community involvement and food production.</i></p> <p>Decision</p> <p>The Stonehenge School (Amesbury School Cluster) was awarded £2500 towards a counselling service.</p> <p><i>Reason - The application was supported on the basis that is a project of community wide benefit working with children and young people.</i></p> <p>Decision</p> <p>Steeple Langford Parish Council was awarded £3000 towards the cost of refurbishment and replacement works to the village play area.</p> <p><i>Reason - The application met the Community Area Grants Criteria 2013/14 and would benefit all age groups within the community</i></p> <p>Decision</p> <p>Amesbury Community Players was awarded £500 towards the cost of a new lighting control system.</p> <p><i>Reason – the application met the Community Area Grants Criteria 2013/14.</i></p> <p>Decision</p> <p>Brambles Pre-School was awarded £350 towards the cost of setting up a new after school club.</p> <p><i>Reason – this application was supported on the basis that it accords with the board’s community plan priority for children and young people.</i></p> <p>ACTION: Karen Linaker</p>
14	<p><u>Future Meeting Dates, Evaluation and Close</u></p> <p>It was noted that the next meeting of the Amesbury Area Board would be held on Thursday 19 September 2013, 7.00pm at Shrewton Recreation Hall, Recreation Ground, Mill Lane, Shrewton SP3 4JY.</p> <p>The Chairman thanked everyone for attending.</p>

Minute Item 8

Crime and Community Safety Briefing Panel Amesbury Community Area Board July 2013



1. Neighbourhood Policing

Sector Commander: Christian Lange
Team Sgt: Ricky Lee

Amesbury Town

Beat Manager – PC Lucy Smith
PCSO – Jo Atkinson
PCSO – Wendy Leat

Amesbury Rural

Beat Manager – PC Mark Steele
PCSO – Shona Maycock
PCSO – Will Todd

Durrington, Larkhill & Bulford

Beat Manager – PC Jayne Wilby
PCSO – Scott Young

2. NPTs - Current Priorities & Consultation Opportunities:

Up-to-date details about Neighbourhood Policing Teams including team membership, current priorities and forthcoming community consultation events can be found on our Wiltshire Police Website.

□ Visit NPT website at: www.wiltshire.police.uk

3. Performance and Other Local Issues

The crimes levels that have been recorded by Wiltshire Police in the Amesbury area have risen slightly compared to last year but Amesbury continues to be a relatively low crime area. The increase in non-dwelling burglaries where sheds are broken into continues to be a problem. Owners of sheds, isolated barns or garages are encouraged to take steps to protect their property. One of the most effective preventative measures to take is to ensure that your property is clearly marked with your postcode. Property that is very clearly marked with your postcode becomes unattractive to burglars as they find it hard to sell which means that they are less likely to steal it. Your Neighbourhood team will be more than happy to provide you with advice.

I am pleased to report that domestic burglaries have reduced significantly (36%) over this reporting period. These are far more serious offences where people's homes have been broken into and it is good to see that these crimes are now relatively rare in the Amesbury Community Area.

In the past week, the Amesbury and Tidworth Neighbourhood teams have been working with the Royal Military Police on what is called Operation 'Engage'. This operation is aimed at reducing rural crime and we tend to work with local farmers and the HMRC. On this occasion £790 worth of on-the-spot fines were issued to motorists found using red diesel. We often find that people who use red diesel in their vans are involved in thefts and burglaries.

We have also recently arrested three suspects for a number of burglaries in the area. The suspects were disturbed by the owner of a domestic garage who immediately called police. This meant that the Police Operator was able to provide the correct advice to the victim regarding the preservation of the scene. The dog handler was deployed and was able follow the track left by the offenders and they were all arrested for burglary (one was rather shocked at being confronted by a large hairy police dog!). Their homes were then searched and stolen property recovered.

We have also recently arrested a local man who had caused damage to seven vehicles one evening where car windows were smashed. The male has now been charged with these offences. Unfortunately we have had another spate of damage to vehicles where 24 cars have had their tyres damaged in Amesbury. This has caused a great deal of inconvenience and distress to many people. We are working hard to track down the offender.

Many thanks

Christian Lange
Sector Commander
Amesbury and Tidworth.

EM Amesbury NPT	Crime				Detections*	
	12 Months to June 2012	12 Months to June 2013	Volume Change	% Change	12 Months to June 2012	12 Months to June 2013
Victim Based Crime	1126	1255	+129	+11.5%	17%	19%
Domestic Burglary	36	23	-13	-36.1%	11%	13%
Non Domestic Burglary	159	164	+5	+3.1%	2%	2%
Vehicle Crime	110	122	+12	+10.9%	5%	6%
Criminal Damage & Arson	252	292	+40	+15.9%	11%	14%
Violence Against The Person	219	249	+30	+13.7%	37%	42%
ASB Incidents (YTD)	234	224	-10	-4.3%		

Wiltshire Police are compared against a group of 8 most similar forces. Wiltshire Police have performed in line with peers and better than average for Victim Based Crime and significantly better than peers for Domestic Burglary in the previous 12 month period (April 2012 - March 2013).

* Detections include both Sanction Detections and Local Resolutions